POWER



PRAYING

Power PrayingPraying with Power

Kevin Henry

Revive Ministries Ross Haven, Alberta

Table of Contents

How to use this prayer book	6
For the Lost	
Prayer of Salvation	
Confession	9
Prayer to start the day	10
Daily Prayer over you and your family	11
Prayer to end the day	
Releasing the Power of God in your life	13
Wisdom	15
Spiritual Authority & Power	16
Protection – Personal (Spiritually, physically,	
emotionally, mentally)	18
Financial Blessing/Need	19
Church Leadership (Pastor(s)/Elders)	20
Governing Authorities	
Marriage	23
Marriage (For Husband)	24
Marriage (By husband for himself)	25
Marriage (For Wife)	26
Marriage (By wife for herself)	27
Fathers	27
Fathers (for himself)	28
Mothers	29
Mothers (for herself)	30
Children	31
Spirit of Fear	33
Worries/Anxiety/Stress	34
Significance/Self-esteem	35
Physical, Mental and Emotional Healing	36
Family (Conception)	37
Family (Pregnancy)	39

Published by Revive Ministries ©2024 Revive Ministries

Reproduction of this book is prohibited.

https://www.facebook.com/ReviveUsMinistries

How to use this prayer book

This book is intended to be used as a way to deepen your prayer life on the areas listed in this book.

What these prayers are not:

These prayers are not a formula to pray. These prayers are not a means to change God's plan for you. It is not for pleading to get your way when your will is contrary to His.

What these prayers are:

These prayers are a guide to help you to pray for the areas listed in this book. It is a tool to focus your attention on God as you pray and to foster greater intimacy with God.

Use this book as a means to greater thought about how you pray to God. Allow God to direct you to pray beyond the prayers of this book.

For the Lost

Pray this prayer for any person who has not yet received salvation from Jesus.

Father in Heaven, I/we know and understand that You are not slow to fulfill your promises. You are very patient towards us because You do not want anyone to perish in hell. Your desire for us is to come to repentance and salvation in Your Son Jesus our Lord and Savior (2 Pe 3:9). You do not delight in the death of anyone (Eze 18:32).

Jesus you have shown a great light on the hearts of all people. You have shown the light of the knowledge of the Father's glory (2 Cor 4:6). It is the evil one who has blinded the minds of the unbelievers to keep them from seeing Your light (2 Cor 4:4). Therefore, Father God, we ask You to open the spiritual eyes of [person's name] so that he/she will see You. That he/she will recognize his/her need for Your salvation. May [person's name] be deaf to the lies of the evil one and open to Your truth (Isa 54:17).

Father in Heaven, we ask that You send your ministering angels to [person's name]. May they open [person's name] eyes and ears to You and Your gospel (Heb 1:14).

Father in Heaven, as You prepare [person's name] to hear your gospel I ask that You send harvesters to share Your gospel to him/her. May

You even give me/us the opportunity to declare Your good news to him/her. I/We pray that when [person's name] hears Your gospel through me/us or others that he/she will receive Your salvation (Isa 55:11).

I pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Prayer of Salvation

Pray this prayer for your salvation if you have not yet received God's forgiveness for your sins.

Lord Jesus, I come to You understanding that I have sinned against You and am a sinner (1 Jn 1:8; Rom 3:23). I understand that there is no amount of deeds I can do to earn salvation from my sins (Eph 2:9). I am sorry for my sins and ask You to forgive me (1 Jn 1:9). I ask You to save me from my sin and the consequence of hell (Rom 6:23).

Lord Jesus, I confess that You are my Savior and Lord. I choose from this moment on to surrender my life to You and live for You (Rom 10:9-10).

I pray this to You, Lord Jesus, in faith that You have done as You have promised and saved me from my sin and give me eternal life (Rom 10:13). Lord Jesus, thank You for saving me, giving me eternal life. Thank you for giving me a home with You forever in heaven (Rom 6:23).

I pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Confession

Christian, pray this prayer to confess any sin of action, words, thought or omission.

Father in Heaven, I have sinned against You. I confess to You that I have committed the sin of [name the sin]. It is with sincere grief that I come before You to ask for Your forgiveness of this sin. I choose to rest in Your power to overcome the temptations that may attempt to lead me to sin in this way again. I ask Holy Spirit to remind me to look for the way of escape that You will provide for me (1 Cor 10:13).

I thank you Jesus, that you are faithful and just to forgive my sin and to cleanse me of it (1 Jn 1:9).

I pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Prayer to start the day

Pray this prayer to begin your day and focus your gaze on God.

Father in Heaven, I ask that this morning, as my prayer comes before You (Psa 88:13), hear my voice (Psa 5:3). Satisfy me with Your steadfast love that I may rejoice and be glad all of this day (Ps 90:14; 30:5). I declare of Your steadfast love and give You praise for this new day you have given to me.

Father in Heaven, I ask that You go before me this day (Col:17). Be at work in and through my life. Use me for your glory. May my life be a reflection of You to those who interact with me (2 Cor 3:18).

Father in Heaven, I ask that You would guide my steps (Ps 37:23), give me the words to speak (Col 4:6) and my mind focused on You (Isa 26:3). I commit myself to You, this day, as an instrument for righteousness (Rom 6:13).

I pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Daily Prayer over you and your family

Pray this prayer over your family to commit them to God's daily care and keeping.

Father in Heaven, I pray that [family members] will know Your truth this day (Jn 8:32).

Father in Heaven, I pray and ask of You to remind us of the armor You have bestowed upon us. That we are equipped to stand firm through Your belt of truth, the breastplate of righteousness, and the gospel of peace. In addition to You being our shield, You have given us the shield of faith to extinguish the flaming darts of the evil one. You have given us the sword of the Spirit; Your very word to know and live Your Truth (Eph 6:14-19). It is through Your Word that our minds are transformed so that we can know Your will (Rom 12:2). Father in Heaven, thank You, that as we have Your armor equipped and on at all times we are able to stand against the devil's schemes (Eph 6:12).

Father in Heaven, I pray that [family members] will know the riches of Your glory and be strengthened with power through the Holy Spirit in our inner being (Eph 3:16). May we be given Your Spirit of wisdom and of revelation in the knowledge of Jesus our Savior. May our eyes of our hearts be enlightened and know the hope and glorious inheritance to which we have been called (Eph 1:17-19).

Father in Heaven, on this day I pray that [family members] will honor You as holy in our hearts (1Pet 3:15). That we remember that we are redeemed from the curse of the law (Gal 3:13). May we walk knowing that we are not waging war in the flesh but in the spiritual realm. May we remember that our weapons are spiritual weapons giving us Your divine power to destroy strongholds, to destroy arguments and opinions raised against Your knowledge, to take every thought captive and obey Jesus (2 Cor 10:3-5).

Father in Heaven, I ask that You go before [family members], protecting and guiding our steps (Col 1:17; Ps 20:1; Ps 48:14; 37:23). I ask that oppression, fear, and terror shall not come upon us (Isa 54:14).

Father in Heaven, I thank you, that as [family members] walk through this day and since we are born of You we will overcome the world (1 Jn 5:4). Today, we are more than conquerors. We will not be separated from Your love by any means of the evil one (Rom 8:37-38).

I pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Prayer to end the day

Pray this prayer to end your day. To release that events of this day and give Him thanks.

Father in Heaven, I declare Your faithfulness through this day and on through this night as I sleep (Ps 92:2). I ask that You grant me peace as I both lie down and sleep. You alone, O God, make me dwell in safety (Ps 4:8).

Father in Heaven, I commit my mind to You, for Your care and keeping as I rest (Isa 26:3). Speak to me in my sleep, may I see visions and dreams from You and only You (Acts 2:17).

Father God, as I sleep I ask that You place a hedge of protection about me, keeping me safe from any spiritual attacks. Strengthen me in my sleep with Your righteous right hand (Isa 41:10).

I pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Releasing the Power of God in your life

Pray this prayer for the releasing of God's power in your life.

Father in Heaven, I come before You humbly to ask you for the releasing of Your power in my life. Father in Heaven, Your Word says that we are to consider ourselves dead to sin (Rom 6:11). You require of us to come to You and confess our sins, so that we will be in right relationship with You (1 Jn 1:9). You also state that when we confess that we must do so with Godly grief. For Godly grief produces repentance that leads to salvation without regret (2 Cor 7:10).

Note: Repeat this paragraph for each sin that is brought to your mind.

Therefore, Father in Heaven, I ask that You bring to my remembrance any sin I have willingly and unknowingly committed that I have not yet confessed to You. Father in Heaven, please forgive me for (name the sin). I am so sorry for committing this sin and I commit to surrender my thoughts, my actions (and lack thereof), and my words to You for works of righteousness.

Father in Heaven, I ask that as I look at Your Word, that You would unfold Your Words to give me light and impart understanding (Psa 119:130). Please give me Your Spirit of wisdom and revelation in the knowledge of Jesus Christ (Eph 1:17).

Father in Heaven, I ask that according to Your riches in glory that You would grant me to be strengthened with power through Your Spirit in my inner being. I ask that Christ will dwell in my heart through faith and to be strengthened to comprehend the fullness of the love of Christ which

surpasses all knowledge and to be filled with the fullness of God (Eph 3:16-20).

Father in Heaven, immerse me in Your Holy Spirit (Mt 3:11).

Father in Heaven, I ask You to please fulfill these things in my life. I thank You and praise You for You have said in Your Word that because I love You I am more than a conqueror (Rom 8:37). Thank You Father, that You have filled me with Your power to honor You with my life and to keep me in closer relationship with You.

I pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Wisdom

Pray this prayer if you are in need of wisdom for any matter.

Father in Heaven, I know that you are all wise and all wisdom comes from You. I come to You now to ask for Your wisdom (Pro 4:7; Jm 1:5). I want to keep in step with Your Spirit for [name situation] (Eph 5:25).

Father in Heaven, open my ears so that I may hear You speak Your wisdom and I may act in accordance with Your good wisdom.

Thank You for the wisdom that You will give me for this situation.

I pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Spiritual Authority & Power

Pray this prayer for the covering and releasing of God's power in your life.

Father in Heaven, I come before You recognizing that You have all power and authority. It is only You that grants Your power and authority to be used for Your purpose and glory (Jn 12:49; Rom 13:1). I recognize that You grant strength with Your power through Your Spirit in my inner being, according to the riches of Your glory (Eph 3:16). You have declared in Your Word that You have not given me a spirit of fear, but of power and love and self-control (2 Tim 1:8).

Father in Heaven, I ask that You give me the power and authority to speak (Acts 4:33) so that I may serve You and fulfill Your purpose of power in my life.

Father in Heaven, You have given the power and authority to resist the devil (Jm 4:7). You say, Father, that the prayer of a righteous person has great power as it is working. I thank You that You have made me righteous and have this power in prayer (Jm 5:16).

Father in Heaven, I claim your power and authority to proclaim the gospel to all who would hear (Mk 16:15).

Father in Heaven, I claim what You have equipped me with the weapons of divine power to destroy strongholds, destroy arguments and every lofty opinion raised against the knowledge of You (2 Cor 10:4-5). I claim that when I tell demons to flee from me, they must do so, because I am Your child. I have Your power to overcome temptation (1 Cor 10:13).

Father in Heaven, As You gave power and authority to the early disciples I can claim the same power and authority to tread on serpents and scorpions; to have power over the enemy (Lk 10:19-20). I receive and claim the same power and authority over unclean spirits, to cast them out and to heal the diseased and afflicted (Mt 10:1).

I pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Protection - Personal (Spiritually, physically, emotionally, mentally)

Pray this pray for God's protection for yourself.

Father in Heaven, I ask for Your protection over me. Father Your Word says that You are a shield about me, You are my glory and the lifter of my head (Ps 3:3). As You are my shield You have also equipped me with Your armor. I am equipped to stand firm through Your belt of truth, the breastplate of righteousness, and the gospel of peace. In addition to You being my shield, You have given me the shield of faith to extinguish the flaming darts of the evil one. You have given me the sword of the Spirit; Your very word to know and live Your Truth (Eph 6:14-19). It is through Your Word that my mind is transformed so that I can know Your will (Rom 12:2). Father in Heaven, as I have Your armor equipped and on at all times I know that I will stand against the devil's schemes (Eph 6:12).

Father in Heaven, as You protect me from all of the devil's schemes, through Your covering and equipping, I confess that You are Lord and I surrender myself to You (Rom 10:9). My eyes are the lamp of my body and I surrender my eyes to You to be used as instruments of righteousness (Mt 6:22; Rom 6:13). You have created my ears to hear what Your Spirit says. So I will guard my ears to be instruments of righteousness (Luke 8:18; Rev 2:29; Rom 6:13). My feet You created to move from one

place to the next. I surrender my feet to You to go where you want me to go and to be an instrument of righteousness (Prov 16:9; Rom 10:15; 6:13). My hands You created to serve You and be busy about the work You have given me. I surrender my hands to You to be instruments of righteousness (Ps 90:17; Rom 6:13). My mind You created to think upon whatever is true, whatever is honorable, whatever is just, whatever is pure, whatever is lovely, and whatever is commendable. May no unwholesome thought come and I will keep every thought captive in obedience to You. I surrender my mind to You to be an instrument of righteousness (2 Th 3:11; Ph 4:8; 2 Cor 10:5; Rom 6:13).

Father in Heaven, I praise You and thank You that in You I am more than a conqueror (Rom 8:37). In You I find life (Ac 17:28), freedom (2 Cor 3:17), peace (Jn 14:27), rest (Mt 11:29) and protection (Ps 91:14).

I pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Financial Blessing/Need

Pray this prayer when you are in need or need a financial blessing.

Father in Heaven, I come before You recognizing that all good things come from You (Lk 11:13). You tell us that this is one way that we are

to test You; to ask that You would bless me/us with Your provision far beyond we could image (Mal 3:10-11).

So I ask you Father that You would meet this need of [name the need]. I commit to You, to be a good steward of Your provision in this way. I pledge that I will use Your provision to bring glory to You and Your name (2 Cor 9:6-8).

I pray this believing that You will do it because You promised that you will supply all my/our needs (Phil 4:19).

I pray this by faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Church Leadership (Pastor(s)/Elders)

God tells us that we are to pray for our spiritual leaders. Pray this prayer throughout the week. for your pastor(s) and elders.

Father in Heaven, I thank You for my pastor(s) and elders who keep watch over my soul. I pray that they will be able to do their ministry with joy (Heb 13:17). I pray that their faith and way of life will continue to be one that I can imitate (Heb 13:7).

I ask Holy Spirit that You will rest upon him/them. Give him/them wisdom, understanding, counsel, might, and the knowledge and the fear of

the Lord (Isa 11:2-3). May he/they walk with You and not gratify the desires of the flesh (Gal 5:16).

Father in Heaven equip him/them to shepherd Your church and exercising oversight with humility (1 Pe 5:1-5). Give him/them wisdom in how to disciple Your church. Through his discipleship may we attain the unity of the faith, to maturity, and to the fullness of Christ (Eph 4:11-14).

Father in Heaven, protect him/them and his family from attacks of the evil one. Please bless him/them beyond measure.

I pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Governing Authorities

The government is an institution that God has placed in rule over us for the sake of justice. We then need to pray for our government. Pray this prayer for our federal, provincial/state and, municipal governments.

Father in Heaven, You command us to pray for our governing authorities so that we may live peaceful lives. I/we first ask, Oh God, that our Federal, Provincial and Municipal government leaders would know You, the One and only True God. I/we pray for those leaders who do not know You as Lord and Savior that You would send Your witnesses to them, proclaim Your gospel and that

they would receive Your salvation with gladness (1 Tim 2:1-3).

Father in Heaven, we know that understanding comes from You. Therefore, God, I/we call upon our Federal, Provincial, and Municipal governments to turn to You for guidance and that they will have Your mind when making decisions. When they follow Your guidance may they be blessed with even greater wisdom to rule and govern (1 Cor 2:16). I/we pray for Your wisdom for our Federal, Provincial and Municipal governments, so that they may rule us with wisdom so that we may walk in the way of goodness and righteousness (Pr 2:10-11, 20).

Father in Heaven, I/we pray that since You bless nations that make You Lord may our Federal, Provincial, and Municipal governments make You the center of our nation, province/state, and city/town/village so that we may receive Your blessing upon our nation, province/state, and city/town/village (Ps 33:12).

Father in Heaven, I/we understand that in Your Word we are to obey those governing authorities who rule over us in righteousness because their role is to administer Your justice upon wrong doers. Therefore, O God, I/we declare that I/we will submit to my/our governing authorities as You have placed them there to bring justice for those who break Your holy laws. I/we pray that these governing authorities will govern within the

bounds you have established for them. May they fear You and their governing bring glory to You and Your name, O Holy One (Rom 13:1-7).

I/we pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Marriage

Father in Heaven, we thank You for this marriage. We commit ourselves to You in and desire to honor You.

Father in Heaven, we pray that You guard and protect our marriage as we too work to guard and protect our marriage.

Father in Heaven, may You continue to bond us closer to You and each other (Mt 19:5).

As we seek to fulfill the role You have given us may we bring honor to You and be an example for other married couples (Eph 5:23-30). When others see our marriage may they be able to say, "This is a couple that we want to be like."

Father in Heaven, may all that we face together strengthen our marriage and our relationship with You.

We pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Marriage (For Husband)

Women, pray this prayer for your husband.

Father in Heaven, I thank You for the blessing of my husband. I pray that He would first seek You with His whole heart. That He would continue to grow to be the man You have called Him to be (Psa 119:2). May He be a doer of Your word (Jam 1:22).

Father in Heaven, I ask that You would bless my husband as He walks in righteousness and Your ways. Protect him from wicked men. May he love Your laws and mediate upon Your word daily and throughout the day. Lord, prosper my husband. May all that he touches bear good fruit (Psa 1:1-3).

Father in Heaven, I ask for Your wisdom for him. May he judge all things according to Your ways. May he have Your mind on all things so that he will know what to do (1 Cor 2:15-16). Lord, give him Your favor and favor with man (Pro 3:3-4).

Father in Heaven, I ask that he is a man that loves me just as Jesus loves His Church. May he guard me and protect me. May he honor me in our marriage bed and keep the sanctity thereof. May his eyes only be on me and keep him from temptation (Eph 5:23-30; 1 Pe 3:7; Mal 2:15).

I pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Marriage (By husband for himself)

Men, pray this prayer for yourself.

Father in Heaven, I thank you for the blessing of my wife. It is my desire to please You in my marriage and to be a blessing to my wife.

Father in Heaven, I pray that I would first seek You with my whole heart. That I would continue to grow to be the man You have called me to be (Psa 119:2). May I be a doer of Your word (Jam 1:22).

Father in Heaven, I ask that You help me to walk in righteousness and Your ways. Protect me from wicked men. May I love your laws and mediate upon Your word daily; moment by moment. Lord, I ask that you grant me Your favor and prosper me. May all that I touch bear good fruit and bring honor to Your name (Psa 1:1-3).

Father in Heaven, I ask for Your wisdom. May I judge all things according to Your ways. May I have Your mind on all things so that I will know what to do (1 Cor 2:15-16). Lord, give me Your favor and favor with man (Pro 3:3-4).

Father in Heaven, I ask that you help me to love my wife just as Jesus loves His Church. May I make it easy for her to submit to me, as I submit to You. May I guard her and protect her. May I honor her in our marriage bed and keep the sanctity

thereof. May my eyes only be on her and keep me from temptation (Eph 5:23-30; 1 Pe 3:7; Mal 2:15).

I pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Marriage (For Wife)

Men, pray this prayer for your wife.

Father in Heaven, I thank You for the blessing of my wife. I thank You that You have prepared her for me and entrusted her to my care and keeping. I thank You that she is my helper (Gen 2:18). I pray that she would first seek You with her whole heart. That she would continue to grow to be the woman You have called her to be (Psa 119:2). May she be a doer of Your word (Jam 1:22).

Father in Heaven I ask that it would be easy for her to submit to me and respect me (Eph 5:22, 33; 1 Pet 3:1-6).

I ask that she will be a woman that I can trust, who does good to me and, cares for our family. May she be generous to the poor and see a good deal (Pro 31:10-31).

I pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Marriage (By wife for herself)

Women, pray this prayer for yourself.

Father in Heaven, I pray that I will be the helper my husband needs (Gen 2:18). I pray that I would first seek You with my whole heart. That I would continue to grow to be the woman You have called me to be (Psa 119:2). May I be a doer of Your word (Jam 1:22).

Father in Heaven, I ask that it would be easy for me to submit to my husband and respect him (Eph 5:22, 33; 1 Pet 3:1-6). I ask that You will create within me a woman that he can trust, who does good to him, and cares for our family. I want to be generous to the poor and see good deals (Pro 31:10-31).

I pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Fathers

Pray this prayer for fathers as a prayer of equipping and blessing.

Father in Heaven, we are reminded that You are the greatest example of what it means to be a father. Therefore, we now lift up [father's name] up to You.

Father in Heaven, we pray that [father's name]'s heart will be stirred towards his children.

As his heart is stirred towards his children may he fulfill all that You intend a father to fulfill (Mal 4:6).

Father in Heaven, may [father's name] bring his children up in the discipline and instruction of the Lord (Eph 6:4). As he disciples and disciplines may he do so in such a way that does not provoke his children to rebellion nor discourages them (Col 3:21; Heb 12:9-11). May his tongue be used to bless and encourage his children at all times.

Father in Heaven, may [father's name] be the spiritual leader he needs to be to point his children towards You. May he hope and desire to someday see and continue to see his children following after You (Pro 22:6).

We pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Fathers (for himself)

Father, pray this prayer for God's equipping to parent your children.

Father in Heaven, I am reminded that You are the greatest example of what it means to be a father. Therefore, I surrender myself to You for Your guidance to parent my children.

Father in Heaven, I pray that my heart will be stirred towards my children. As my heart is

stirred towards my children may I fulfill all that You intend a father to fulfill (Mal 4:6).

Father in Heaven, may I bring my children up in the discipline and instruction of the Lord (Eph 6:4). As I disciple and discipline may I do so in such a way that does not provoke my children to rebellion nor discourages them (Col 3:21; Heb 12:9-11). May my tongue be used to bless and encourage my children at all times.

Father in Heaven, may I be the spiritual leader I need to be to point my children towards You. I hope and desire to someday see and continue to see my children following after You (Pro 22:6).

I pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Mothers

Pray this prayer for mothers as a prayer of equipping and blessing.

Father in Heaven, we are reminded that You are the greatest example of what it means to be a parent. Therefore, we now lift up [mother's name] up to You.

Father in Heaven, we pray that [mother's name]'s heart will be stirred towards her children.

As her heart is stirred towards her children may she fulfill all that You intend a mother to fulfill.

Father in Heaven, may [mother's name] bring her children up in the discipline and instruction of the Lord (Eph 6:4). As she disciples and nurtures may she do so in such a way that does not provoke her children to rebellion nor discourage them (Col 3:21; Heb 12:9-11). May her tongue be used to bless and encourage her children at all times.

Father in Heaven, may [mother's name] be the spiritual caretaker she needs to be to point her children towards You. May she hope and desire to someday see and continue to see her children following after You (Pro 22:6).

We pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Mothers (for herself)

Mother, pray this prayer for God's equipping to parent your children.

Father in Heaven, I am reminded that You are the greatest example of what it means to be a parent. Therefore, I surrender myself to You for Your guidance to parent my children.

Father in Heaven, I pray that my heart will be stirred towards my children. As my heart is

stirred towards my children may I fulfill all that You intend a mother to fulfill.

Father in Heaven, may I bring my children up in the discipline and instruction of the Lord (Eph 6:4). As I disciple and nurture may I do so in such a way that does not provoke my children to rebellion nor discourage them (Col 3:21; Heb 12:9-11). May my tongue be used to bless and encourage my children at all times.

Father in Heaven, may I be the spiritual caretaker I need to be, to point my children towards You. I hope and desire to someday see and continue to see my children following after You (Pro 22:6).

I pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Children

Pray this prayer over your children.

Dear Heavenly Father, thank you so much for [child's name]. We are so blessed to have him/her as our child. He/she is a heritage from You. He/she is one you have created as Your workmanship to do Your works which You prepared beforehand (Psa 127:3; Eph 2:10).

Father in Heaven, we promise to teach [child's name] all Your ways so that he/she will have great peace, wisdom, revelation and knowledge of You (Isa 54:13; 1 Th 5:23; Eph 1:17-18). We will not cease to pray that [child's name]. will walk in a manner worthy of You, pleasing and bearing fruit in every good work (Col 1:9-12).

Father in Heaven as [child's name] walks in Your counsel may he/she be blessed. May he/she be like a tree planted by streams of water and bring forth fruit. May all that he/she does prosper (Psa 1:1-3).

Father in Heaven, I pray that [child's name] will have great sensitivity to Your voice. May he/she follow You fully in the direction You lead him/her (Jn 10:4). May all that he/she says bring honor to Your name (Mt 21:16). Holy Spirit may You be upon him/her that Your words be on his/her tongue (Isa 59:21).

Father in Heaven, we pray that no weapon would be fashioned against [Child's name]. That he/she will be able to refute every tongue that rises against him/her in judgment (Isa 54:17). Raise him/her up among a mighty generation that does amazing things for You and Your Kingdom (Psa 112:2).

Father in Heaven may [Child's name] be honoring to us, so that it may go well with him/her and live long (Eph 6:1-3).

Father in Heaven we pray for [Child's name]'s future spouse. We pray, O God, that his/her spouse will fear You. That he/she will love You with all his/her being. We pray for his/her parents that they raise him/her in Your ways. Protect him/her from all evil. May he/she be Your best for our child. We pray that our child will be the same as his/her future spouse. May he/she fulfill the role You have for him/her in their marriage. We pray that both will keep their marriage bed sacred until the day of their wedding.

We pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Spirit of Fear

Pray this prayer when you struggle with fear.

Dear Father God, I know that without faith it is impossible to please You. Father, I do have faith in You. However, there are times when I fear [name the fear]. So Father I now, in this moment surrender my fear of [name the fear] to You. I believe that You can and will help me overcome my fear of [name the fear]. For You are greater than anything (Heb 11:6).

Father in Heaven, things are not as they seem because these things are unseen. I now focus my eyes upon You and what is eternal (2 Cor 4:18).

Father in Heaven, You give Your strength. Therefore, I do not need to fear. Because of You, I can and will be strong and courageous (Josh 1:9). You have not given me a spirit of fear, but of power, love, and self-control (2 Tim 1:7).

Jesus, You have delivered me from the dominion of darkness and transferred me into Your kingdom. You, O Lord are by my side. I shall triumph over fear. I say to fear, you have no power over me. I am God's child and because of His power and might you no longer rule my heart and mind. No man or demon can harm me, because I am covered in the power of God (Col 1:13-14; Psa 118:6-7; 27:1-3; Rom 8:31; 2 Cor 10:4-5)).

Father in Heaven, I thank You because in You I am free and I now walk free from fear.

I pray in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Worries/Anxiety/Stress

Pray this prayer when you feel worried, anxious, or stressed.

Father in Heaven, I know that You are a good God who cares for His children. Father, right now I feel [worried/anxious/stressed] over [name the issue/need].

Father in Heaven, I know that You say not to be anxious over [name the issue/need]. But right now I feel burdened by this. I am stepping in faith in You believing that you will meet my need of [name the issue/need] (Mt 6:25-34; Phil 4:6; 1 Pet 5:7; Heb 4:16). I give You praise and thanksgiving because I know that You are with me. I need not be worried, anxious, or stressed about this issue/need. I thank You for the peace You are already giving me (Jn 14:27; 16:33).

I pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Significance/Self-esteem

Pray this prayer when you feel like you are not significant or have low self-esteem.

Father in Heaven, I thank You that confidence does not come from within, but come from You. My significance and esteem come from You.

Father in Heaven, You called me as your child. Since I have accepted Your calling into salvation, I understand and recognize that I am a new creation in You. In You I find my significance (Eph 2:8; Rom 10:9-10; Act 17:28; Psa 139:14).

Now Father in Heaven, I stand as more than a conqueror. I can do all that You ask of me

because it is You who strengthens me (Rom 8:37; Phil 4:13).

I pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Physical, Mental and Emotional Healing

Pray this prayer for healing both by Jesus and through the authority he gives you. This prayer can be used for physical, mental, emotional, and spiritual healing. If possible anoint the person with anointing oil before praying this prayer over them.

Father in Heaven, I/we thank You that You have given Jesus all authority (Mt 28:18). Lord Jesus, I/we know and understand that You have all power and authority over health and death (Lk 4:18-19). The scriptures tell us that You have taken upon Yourself our illnesses and diseases (Is 53:4-5; Mt 8:17). You are Yahweh Rophe, the God who heals.

Jesus, have given us the authority, power, and spiritual gifts to heal others for Your honor and glory (Mt 10:1; 1 Cor 12:9,28). Thus we acknowledge that it is Your power in us that as I/we pray You can and will bring healing.

I/we pray now Father for [name]. I/we pray that You will heal him/her of [infirmity/illness]. We ask, Oh God, that what needs to be removed in

his/her body would be removed. Whatever needs to be restored to be restored.

I/We command in the powerful name of Jesus that [infirmity/illness] be removed from [name]. That [name] will be fully restored. As this infirmity/illness leaves [name] I/we command it to never return, in Jesus' name.

We praise You, O God, for the healing that you are bringing to [name].

We pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Family (Conception)

Pray this prayer for conception.

Father in Heaven, we thank You and praise You for You are the creator of all life. From You and through You all life comes (Gen 1:27). We recognize that You tell us that children are a heritage from You. The man who fills his quiver with them is blessed (Psa 127:3-5)!

Father in Heaven, we desire to conceive a child and to bring this child into the world You have created. Therefore, we ask that you bless [name of wife]'s womb. That you would open her womb and fill it with a blessed child (Psa 127:3; Deut 28:4)

We pray in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Pray this prayer for healing from female barrenness.

Father in Heaven we pray for the healing of [wife's name] reproductive organs. You tell us Father that You heal all our diseases (Psa 103:3). You have broken the curse of the fall by Your death and resurrection (Gal 3:13). You have given the power and gifts to heal (1 Cor 12:9). Therefore, Father we ask that You heal [wife's name]'s reproductive organs. That You would open her womb and create within her womb a new child to bless us with.

We pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Pray this prayer for healing from male barrenness.

Father in Heaven we pray for the healing of [husband's name]'s reproductive organs. You tell us Father that you heal all our diseases (Psa 103:3). You have broken the curse of the fall by Your death and resurrection (Gal 3:13). You have given the power and gifts to heal (1 Cor 12:9). Therefore, Father we ask that You heal [husband's name]'s reproductive organs. That You use his sperm to create a new child to bless us with.

We pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

Family (Pregnancy)

Pray this prayer through pregnancy.

Father in Heaven, we thank You and praise You for You are the creator of all life. From You and through You all life comes (Gen 1:27). We recognize that You tell us that children are a heritage from You. You bless the man who fills his quiver with them (Psa 127:3-5). Children are a gift from You (Jm 1:17).

Father in Heaven, we ask that You surround and protect [mother] and this blessing, this child in her womb. Grow this child free of defects and keep the womb free of infections. Keep [mother]'s free from falls. Strengthen her womb and protect her and the child from miscarriage.

We pray that You, Father in Heaven, would keep mother and child in complete health. We pray that when it comes time for delivery there will be no complications. That the child will be born in full health as well as [mother].

We pray this in faith, in the name of Jesus Christ and by the power of the Holy Spirit. Amen!

